
Page 1 of 3 

  

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0448. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0449.  Roll Call 

16C‐0450.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0451.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0452.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0453.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐21 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0454. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 24, 
2016  

4‐8  

Page 1 of 71



Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐21 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0455. 
  
Approval of Stray Dog Pick‐Up Contract with Jo Daviess County Animal Control 
Department for December 1, 2016‐November 30, 2017 

9‐11  

 
16C‐0456. 

 
Approval of Budget Amendment BA17‐05 

12‐13 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0416. 
 

Discussion and Possible Action on Repair to Retaining Wall Adjacent to 108 S. 
High Street 

 
14-15 

 
16C‐0440. 

 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Amending the Zoning 
Ordinance to Permit Vacation Rentals in the Historic District   

 
16‐30 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0457. 
  
Report from American Water on Galena Water and Wastewater Operations 

 
31‐37 

 
16C‐0458. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Amending Chapter 93 and Chapter 112 of 
the Code of Ordinances for Licensing of Vacation Rentals   

 
38‐42 

 
16C‐0459. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Horse Drawn Carriage License Application by 
Ehrler Ranch, LLC, 11750 West Chetlain Lane, Galena 

 
43‐45 

 
16C‐0460. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of the Illinois 
Municipal League Risk Management Association Minimum/Maximum 
Contribution Agreement 

 
46‐48 

 
16C‐0461. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Requesting the Assistance and 
Participation of the Illinois EPA for Environmental Investigation of the Former 
Jo Daviess County Service Company on South Main Street 

 
49‐51 

 
16C‐0462. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Establishing the Amount of the 2016 Tax 
Levy to be Collected in 2017 

 
52‐56 

 
16C‐0463. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Purchase of Pay and Display Parking 
Terminals  

 
57 

Page 2 of 71



Page 3 of 3 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

 
CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

City Council    Mon. November 28  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. December 1  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. December 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, November 10, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0464. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on Joint Purchase of Leak Detection Equipment 

 
58 

 
16C‐0465. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Clean‐Up of East Side Bulk Tank Site  

 
59‐61 

 
16C‐0466 

 
Warrants 

62‐71 

16C‐0467.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
16C‐0468.  City Administrator’s Report    
16C‐0469.  Mayor’s Report   
16C‐0470.  Adjournment   

Page 3 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  24 October 2016 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 24 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

16C-0428 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 24 October 2016.  
 
16C-0429 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier 
and Renner 
 
Absent:  Hahn 
 
16C-0430 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0431– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0432 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
16C-0433 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Karen Kelly, 905 S. Main Street – Kelly read a prepared statement voicing concern with the 
recent action taken by Council to lease land on South Main Street to Fever River Outfitters.  She 
is concerned with the impact leasing this land will have on the neighboring properties and urged 
the council to reconsider the motion to lease or sell this property.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-20 
 
16C-0434 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
OCTOBER 11, 2016 
 
16C-0435 – APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION ON THE REVIEW AND POSSIBLE RELEASE 
OF EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 
 
16C-0436 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR SECONDARY EMPLOYMENT BY POLICE 
OFFICER BILL SALZMANN 
 
16C-0437 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH JOE BEYER FOR RECOATING THE METAL 
ROOF OF THE BLACKSMITH SHOP 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-20 as presented.       
 
Discussion:  Moran advised a second bid was received for the Blacksmith Shop.  The bid was 
from Mike Harris Construction in the amount of $7,200.       
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            

Page 4 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  24 October 2016 
 

  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0438– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE INSTALLATION OF A WATER 
MAIN ON POWDER HOUSE HILL ROAD 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the installation of a 10” water main 
on Powder House Hill Road.        
 
Discussion: Council agreed this is the right time to do it.  The money will come out of the water 
fund which had a positive year-end balance.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
          
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0439– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY BRET TERRELL FOR 
A LICENSE TO OCCUPY CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH A FENCE AND PARKING AT 1141 
NORTH WEST STREET 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the request by Bret Terrell for a license 
to occupy city right-of-way with a fence and parking at 1141 North West Street amended to 
include per the revised site plan presented.   
 
Discussion:  Moran advised a new site plan with revisions has been submitted.  Fach noted 
there is an understanding that should the city ever need the property they would be required to 
move whatever they have on it.   
 
Amended 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein to amend the motion to include per the revised site 
plan presented.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0440 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
PERMIT VACATION RENTALS IN THE HISTORIC DISTRICT 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
amending the Zoning Ordinance to permit vacation rentals in the Historic District, 16C-0440.     

Page 5 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  24 October 2016 
 

 
Discussion:  While Renner feels this is a good policy, he thinks down the road when we start 
issuing permits we should look at the possibility of limiting the number of permits allowed in 
residential districts.   Bernstein agreed adding that Matt Oldenburg assured her that with the 
different layers, it was very unlikely that a residential area would be saturated with these 
accommodations.  She agrees if there is a deluge the city should look at putting a cap on it 
because of time required by staff for inspections and the permit process.   
 
Fach noted in Santa Fe, New Mexico they have 500 license Air BnB’s.  He feels a limit should be 
set.  Fach also voiced concern with the enforcement end of it.  He feels there should be some 
kind of swifter reaction and some kind of penalty to deter people from doing it again and/or will 
make them get a license.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0441– FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
PERMIT FLAG SIGNS ON CERTAIN COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading and waive the 
second reading of an ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance to permit one flag sign per 
business as recommended by the Zoning Board on certain commercial properties.   
 
Discussion:  Kieffer stated he doesn’t have a problem with flag signs on certain commercial 
properties.  He has more of a problem with the use of sandwich boards.   
 
Lincoln likes the idea of having them but wishes it would include Main Street having them at a 
certain height.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  Lincoln 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0442– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN AGREEMENT WITH THE ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ENFORCEMENT PILOT 
PROGRAM 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Fach, to approve an agreement with the Illinois 
Department of Revenue for the Alcoholic Liquor Enforcement Pilot Program.   
 
Discussion:  Bernstein noted a discrepancy between Chief Huntington’s letter and the actual 
contract with regard to how much time the department will have to complete the inspections.  
Staff will check on it.    
 
Council feels this will be a good thing for the department.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 6 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  24 October 2016 
 

16C-0443 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-
0443.      
 
Discussion:  Lincoln questioned the bill to Opening Specialists, Inc. in the amount of $1,765.15 
for lock replacement.  Moran advised this was for the locking mechanism and hardware on the 
side door to Turner Hall.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
 
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0444 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Public Restrooms – Bernstein stated she saw a tour bus parked outside of the new public 
restrooms with a line to the restrooms.  The new restrooms were good thinking and good 
placement.   
 
South Main Street – Westemeier feels the Kelly’s should have the opportunity to bid on the 
property should the opportunity come up.   
 
16C-0445 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
South Main Street – Moran advised the City cannot do first right of refusal.  If the property were 
to be sold it would have to be open to the public and a certain process followed.   
 
Audit -  Moran distributed copies of the most recent audit.  A representative will speak at a future 
meeting to give a report on the audit.   
 
Retaining Wall – At the last meeting Council asked staff to move forward with research on the 
retaining wall.  We are waiting for a response from the insurance company and have asked 
another contractor for a quote.   
 
Thank you – Moran thanked the GHS Music Boosters, GHS Key Club, GHS After Prom and Cub 
Scout Pack 93 for their help with the parking lots for Country Fair.  While they benefit financially, it 
helps out a lot having them fill the lots.   
 
16C-0446 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
On behalf of the City Mayor Renner extended his congratulations to Dr. Matt Gallone on his 
award of 2016 Rural Doctor of the Year.   
 
16C-0447 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
   

Page 7 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  24 October 2016 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde, MMC 
City Clerk 

Page 8 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 2, 2016 

RE:    Stray Dog Pick‐up Contract 
 
 
Each year the city contracts with the Jo Daviess County Animal Control Department for stray dog 
pick‐up services within the city limits.  To help fund the service, a $70.00 fee is charged to the city 
each time the Animal Control Warden is called by the Police Department to capture a stray dog.  
When its owner claims a captured animal, the city is reimbursed the release fee up to $70.00.  The 
contract proposed by the county is unchanged from last year.   
 
Some stray dogs are collected by our Police Department, detained by the city, and claimed by the 
owner before Animal Control transfers the animal to the county kennel.  The city incurs costs in 
these instances, including kennel maintenance, food, and personnel to capture and monitor the 
animal.  The city charges a $50 fee when an owner claims a dog that has been detained by the city 
for running at large.   
 
I recommend you authorize the execution of the Stray Dog Contract. 
 

 

Page 9 of 71



Page 10 of 71



Page 11 of 71



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 17‐05  

Fiscal Year 2016‐17  

Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase            Decrease      
Ending           

Balance

Misc. Police Revenue 01.389.2 $                                     10,000  $                                     1,000  $              11,000 

Misc. Police Grant Expense 01.21.830.04 $                                        5,000  $                                     1,000  $                 6,000 

Pay and Display Machine 53.48.830.01 ‐$                                            25,000$                                    25,000$              

Downtown Sidewalk Replacement 01.41830.01 97,455$                                      44,000$          53,455$              

Street Improvement Program 01.41.860.00 ‐$                                            44,000$                                    44,000$          44,000$              

Justification:

Approved Budget After Budget After
Fund Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment

General Fund Revenues 3,916,870$                       3,925,495$                                3,926,495$                             
General Fund Expenses 3,911,742$                       3,954,515$                                3,955,515$                             

General Fund Total 5,128$                               (29,020)$                                    (29,020)$                                  

Other Fund Revenues 6,365,971$                       6,386,416$                                6,386,416$                             
Other Fund Expenses  6,525,945$                       6,570,823$                                6,595,823$                             

Other Fund Total (159,974)$                         (184,407)$                                  (209,407)$                               

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit) (154,846)$                          (213,427)$                                   (238,427)$                               

Approved by City Council on ____________________

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

This budget amendment includes the following proposed changes to the current budget:

1.  The Police Department received an unbudgeted donation from Galena Country Fair.  The proposed budget amendment adds $1,000 to the police revenue budget 
and $1,000 to the police expense budget.  The department intends to purchase an accessory for the new squad with the funds.  

2.  A proposal is included on the November 14 agenda to purchase two new pay and display parking terminals.  The terminals would be installed at the City Hall parking 
lot and the winery parking lot.  The proposed budget amendment would add $25,000 to the Shuttle and Parking expense budget for the purchase. The Shuttle and 
Parking Fund is expected to end the fiscal year with a fund balance of $67,000 after the purchase.  

3.  The construction cost for the emergency repairs to the intersection of Bench Street and Franklin Street totalled $43,669.04. This budget amendment would shift 
$44,000 from the line item for downtown sidewalk repairs to the street improvement expense item.  Expenses for downtown sidewalk repairs are not expected until 
next fiscal year. 

Page 12 of 71



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2016‐2017

Date Line Item Title Line Item No.
Beginning 

Balance
 Increase          Decrease

Ending         

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

06‐27‐16 Grant (Third and Rives Sewer) 52.347.0  $                         ‐    $           15,000   $           15,000  BA17‐01 1097

 

06‐27‐16 Third and Rives Sewer 52.43.850.05 ‐$                        22,233$            22,233$            BA17‐01 1098

   

06‐27‐16 Computer/Software Upgrade 01.21.684.00 ‐$                        24,068$            24,068$            BA17‐01 1099

   

06‐27‐16 Galena Foundation Donation 17.383.5 ‐$                        2,745$              2,745$              BA17‐01 1100

   

06‐27‐16 Galena Foundation Project 17.52.890.00 ‐$                        2,745$              2,745$              BA17‐01 1101

 

07‐11‐16 Sidewalk Replacement 01.41.830.01 110,700$               11,860$            122,560$          BA17‐02 1102

   

07‐11‐16 Meeker Street Bridge 01.41.890..04  $                15,000   $           6,000   $             9,000  BA17‐02 1103

   

07‐11‐16 Liquor Licenses 01.321.0  $                65,625   $             6,125   $           71,750  BA17‐02 1104

09‐12‐16 Maintenance Projects 15.41.614.05  $                         ‐    $           10,000   $           10,000  BA17‐03 1105

09‐12‐16 Galena Foundation Donation  17.383.5 2,745$                    2,700$              5,445$              BA17‐03 1106

09‐12‐16 Park Improvements 17.52.820.06 10,000$                  2,700$              12,700$            BA17‐03 1107

10‐11‐16 Misc. Revenue Public Works 01.389.3  $                25,000   $             2,500   $           27,500  BA17‐04 1108

10‐11‐16 Public Works Contingencies 01.41.929.00  $                         ‐    $             2,500   $             2,500  BA17‐04 1109

10‐11‐16 DUI Fund Expense 01.21.914.00  $                   1,500   $             3,000   $             4,500  BA17‐04 1110

10‐11‐16 Employee Health Insurance 01.13.451.00 343,000$               3,000$              346,000$          BA17‐04 1111

10‐11‐16 Employee Dental Insurance 01.13.451.01 17,450$                  190$                  17,640$            BA17‐04 1112

10‐11‐16 Employee HSA Accounts 01.13.451.02 80,500$                  4,155$              84,655$            BA17‐04 1113

10‐11‐16 Sales Tax Projects (Street Paving) 41.61.860.02  $              307,000   $             7,200   $         314,200  BA17‐04 1114

10‐11‐16 Sidewalk Replacement 01.41.830.01  $              122,560   $         25,105   $           97,455  BA17‐04 1115

10‐11‐16 Consulting Services (Engineering) 01.45.532.00  $                   5,000   $           25,105   $           30,105  BA17‐04 1116

11‐14‐16 Misc. Police Revenue 01.389.2  $                   10,000   $                1,000   $             11,000  BA17‐05 1117

 

11‐14‐16 Misc. Police Grant Expense 01.21.830.04  $                     5,000   $                1,000   $                6,000  BA17‐05 1118

 

11‐14‐16 Pay and Display Machine 53.48.830.01 ‐$                           25,000$               25,000$               BA17‐05 1119

 

11‐14‐16 Downtown Sidewalk Replacement 01.41830.01 97,455$                     44,000$             53,455$               BA17‐05 1120

 

11‐14‐16 Street Improvement Program 01.41.860.00 ‐$                           44,000$               44,000$             44,000$               BA17‐05 1121

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 11/10/2016

Page 13 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 9, 2016 

RE:    Cullen Request for Retaining Wall Repair 
 

 
At the October 10 council meeting, you considered a request from Gina and Randy Cullen, 108 
High Street, for the City to make repairs to a retaining wall in the city right‐of‐way adjacent to 
their property.  You approved a motion for staff to determine whether any City liability exists 
and obtain estimates on the cost of repairs.  I am writing to communicate the opinion of our 
insurer regarding the liability question and to present quotes for repairs from two contractors. 
 
Our insurer through the Illinois Municipal Risk Management Association, CCMSI, was asked to 
assess the City’s liability for the repairs requested by the Cullen’s.  A letter was issued by CCMSI 
to Gina Cullen on November 8 explaining that the wall is not the property of the City and the 
City is not responsible for maintaining the wall.  I am attaching the letter from CCMSI.   
 
Following the October 10 council meeting, City Attorney, Joe Nack, spoke with the former 
owner of 108 S. High Street, Dale Hillary.  Mr. Hillary explained that he constructed the 
retaining wall to support his personal driveway above the wall.  The City has never maintained 
the wall or the driveway.  This information was communicated to CCMSI. 
 
In response to the motion at the October 10 meeting, a quote for the wall repair was obtained 
from a second contractor.  The quotes cover three different repair options.  The options and 
prices are shown in the following table.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please let me know if you have any question.  Thank you for your consideration.    
 

 

Description of Work  Contractor  Cost 

Reset 8’ x 2’ section of rock wall    Ben Wienen Excavating   $4,650 

Reset 15’ x 6’ section of rock wall    Ben Wienen Excavating  $10,815

Remove and rebuild 28’ section of wall 
(from stairs to end of property)   

Earl Thompson Masonry  $15,840

 

Page 14 of 71



Page 15 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  October 19, 2016 

RE: Cal. No. 16A-04, Applicant:  City of Galena – 101 Green Street Galena, IL 
61036.  Request for Text Amendment to §154.015 Definitions, Table 154.403.1 
Permitted Land Uses Table, §154.406(D) Principal Commercial Land Uses, 
§154.406(H) Accessory Residential Land Uses, Table 154.601.3 Minimum 
Required Parking Spaces, to allow Guest Accommodations, Vacation Rentals. 

 
Project Summary: 
 
At the June 13, 2016 Council Meeting, Jonathan Miller and I addressed the Mayor and Council, 
asking whether the Staff should research and investigate the effects of “sharing economy” land 
uses, such as short term rentals other than B&B’s, Inns and Hotels/Motels.   
 
The intent of this initiative is to evaluate the City’s current standing ordinances and determine 
whether we are adequately prepared to address emerging market trends as travelers utilize mobile- 
and web-based applications to connect with prospective hosts for overnight accommodations.  A 
recent spike in local attempts to rent properties to travelers on a short-term basis, outside of the 
provisions of our ordinances, combined with an increase in short-term rental requests by existing 
and prospective property owners has prompted the Staff to request permission for the evaluation. 
 
Jonathan and I have completed substantial research and, along with other Staff members, have 
held a public input meeting to gather facts, search for impacts of short term rentals on other 
communities, and gather input from members of our community.  We have held two meetings with 
the local lodging owners and also held a public input meeting on July 19th.  On July 25th, the City 
Council heard our presentation on findings and asked the Staff to initiate the text amendment to 
allow vacation rentals in certain districts by Special Use Permit only and that they will be licensed 
annually as the other guest accommodations uses and subject to occupancy tax. 
 
The attached proposed ordinance is organized into two categories, a new principal commercial 
land use for vacation rentals that rent a single dwelling unit or multiple dwelling units; and an 
accessory residential land use for properties with single family dwellings that want to rent a single 
room as a vacation rental.  My comments are included in the criteria below as a written report for 
the amendment application.  
 
At their meeting on October 12, 2016, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for 
this request on a unanimous vote by the members present. 
 

Page 16 of 71



2 of 3 

Approval Criteria & Recommendation: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed 
amendments to the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall 
be considered:  Comments are italicized. 

               (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of 
adoption; No text or designations were in error at time of adoption. The advent of technology 
and the travel / tourism needs of the market are creating need for change in allowable uses for 
their accommodations. 

               (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city 
due to installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; New trends in travelers’ wants combined with technology and the 
shared economy have generated the need for a proactive approach to controlling and providing 
for vacation rental land uses. 

               (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and 
defining characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts 
on the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking 
problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm 
water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  Each 
zoning district indicated has properties that may be suitable for the proposed uses.  The detailed 
regulations will reduce the potential for nuisances and provide for a compatible use.  Additional 
control measures, already within the code, will further ensure that nuisance properties can be 
dealt with and permissions revoked. 

               (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and 
the policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; The 
proposed amendment supports the Comprehensive Plan and tourism, identified as the 
community’s main industry. 

               (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made 
available concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; Not 
applicable 

               (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or  There is an 
adequate supply of land as the dwellings are already in existence. 

               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will 
be benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  The growth of tourism 
and visitors to Galena, combined with the interest of vacation rental properties has indicated a 

Page 17 of 71



3 of 3 

need for the land use.  If a provision is made, then it can be controlled.  The benefits to the 
community is allowing a demographic that wishes to stay in vacation rentals to stay within the 
City and spend more time and money here, supporting the local economy. 

 

The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and 
the City Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or 
expedient, additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change 
provided that this additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in 
accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line 
therefrom or by the owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed 
to be altered as to such regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such 
amendment shall not be passed except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the 
selected members of the City Council. 

 
 

Page 18 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 1 
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 16A-04 
 
APPLICATION BY:  City of Galena – 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036 
 
FOR: Request for Text Amendment to 154.015 Definitions, Table 

154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses Table, §154.406(D) 
Principal Commercial Land Uses, §154.406(H) Accessory 
Residential Land Uses, Table 154.601.3 Minimum Required 
Parking Spaces, to allow Guest Accommodations, Vacation 
Rentals. 

 
PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this 
matter on October 12, 2016.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in a 
quarter-page sized ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to the 
hearing.  They were invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present at the 
hearing in which the subject application and materials were reviewed and all persons were heard 
who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
At the June 13, 2016 Council Meeting, City Staff addressed the Mayor and Council, asking 
whether the Staff should research and investigate the effects of “sharing economy” land uses, such 
as short term rentals other than B&B’s, Inns and Hotels/Motels.   
 
The intent of this initiative is to evaluate the City’s current standing ordinances and determine 
whether we are adequately prepared to address emerging market trends as travelers utilize mobile- 
and web-based applications to connect with prospective hosts for overnight accommodations.  A 
recent spike in local attempts to rent properties to travelers on a short-term basis, outside of the 
provisions of our ordinances, combined with an increase in short-term rental requests by existing 
and prospective property owners has prompted the Staff to request permission for the evaluation. 
 
Over the summer, Staff completed substantial research and held public input meetings to gather 
facts, search for impacts of short term rentals on other communities, and gather input from 
members of our community.  We have held two meetings with the local lodging owners and also 
held a public input meeting on July 19th.  On July 25th, the City Council heard a Staff presentation 

Page 19 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 2 
 

on findings and asked the Staff to initiate the text amendment to allow vacation rentals in certain 
districts by Special Use Permit only and that they will be licensed annually as the other guest 
accommodations uses and subject to occupancy tax. 
 
The attached proposed ordinance is organized into two categories, a new principal commercial 
land use for vacation rentals that rent a single dwelling unit or multiple dwelling units; and an 
accessory residential land use for properties with single family dwellings that want to rent a single 
room as a vacation rental.  
 
At their meeting on October 12, 2016, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for 
this request on a unanimous vote by the members present. 
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator, City of Galena spoke as the applicant on behalf of the 
City.  He stated that the City is initiating this request and it started in the Spring when the 
Council discussed whether it would be worth allowing vacation rentals as a land use.  City staff 
was directed to investigate, so they spent the summer researching, holding public meetings and 
gathering information on the subject.  The product of this research and public input resulted in 
the proposed text amendment before us.    
 
Oldenburg said Accommodations, Vacation Rental for Principle Commercial Land Use would 
allow ownership of only one single dwelling unit – vacation rental - per common ownership in a 
residential district.  It also allows ownership of multiple vacation rental units in one building 
such as a downtown building with three apartments - each apartment is a vacation rental unit.  
Accommodations, Vacation Rental – Single Room for Accessory Residential Land Use would 
allow a single room rental within a single family dwelling unit and it must be owner occupied.  It 
can be detached from the main dwelling unit if appropriate.       
 
Oldenburg said a Special Use Permit would be necessary to operate any of the vacation rentals.  
High Density Residential districts were not included.  The reasoning here is that nationally there 
is a concern that the short term rental will cause a shortage of apartments for those seeking long 
term rentals.  If we do not allow vacation rentals in HDR the majority of our large apartment 
complexes would be off limits.  There are a few apartment buildings in downtown commercial 
where multiple units would be allowed.  Single room vacation rental units as an accessory land 
use have to be in single family homes. 
 
Oldenburg next reviewed the changes to detailed land use regulations.  A comprehensive code 
was developed to alleviate negative impact concerns discussed during input meetings.  This gives 
the City control but still allows for good land use.  Oldenburg noted some key points of the 
Principal Commercial Land Use requirements. Off street parking is required except in the 
downtown commercial district.  If there are special circumstances someone could apply for a 
variance along with the special use permit.  The number of guests allowed has been limited by 
looking at the number of original bedrooms in a historic home or the square footage and life 
safety codes for nonresidential buildings.  Lot capacity can be used as a further control measure 
in relation with the neighboring properties.  Parking and its impact to greenspace and the parcel 

Page 20 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 3 
 

will be looked at when determining the number of allowed guests.  Requirements for 
emergencies have been included and much of this was based on what is required by Jo Daviess 
County for their rental program which has worked well for many years.  Approval of a Special 
Use Permit doesn’t mean they can start renting.  There is an inspection process, proof of 
insurance as a business, registration with State and City for hotel motel tax, an annual fee – 
everything a guest home is required to do.  No signage would be allowed on the vacation rental 
property and a guest register must be maintained.  Approval must submit an application for a 
Special Use Permit with all applicable documents just like other guest homes.           
 
Oldenburg said Accessory Residential Land Uses will allow the single room vacation rental.  A 
limit of two sleeping guests, owner occupied and an off street parking space for both the owner 
and the guest is required.   Consideration for lot capacity, application contents and licensing 
requirements if approved are similar to Principal Commercial Land Use.   
 
Oldenburg said Table 154.601.3 Minimum Required Parking Spaces would be adjusted.  Single 
room rental would require one space for the guest and one for the homeowner.  For Principal use 
it would be one space per four guests.   
 
Ryan Dies, 226 South Bench Street, Galena, spoke in favor of the request.  He stated that he would 
like to operate a vacation rental property in the Downtown Commercial district.  He said that he is 
limited on being able to rent space downtown on long term basis, so the short term would work 
well for his scenario.  He believes that this land use will benefit the City and help downtown 
business / building owners to make their properties more viable.  He thinks it will be a great 
experience for visitors. 
 
Catherine Kouzmanoff, 219 South Prospect Street, Galena, spoke in favor of the request.  She 
stated that she is a business owner downtown and supports this amendment because she can take 
a building and turn it into something that works and supports the building financially.  She believes 
that what this land use can do for Galena is we are going to be able to expose our community to 
more people and have more last-minute guests staying in town.   
 
Jody McGill, 336 Spring Street, Galena, spoke in favor of the request.  She stated that she has lived 
in the downtown area most of her life and definitely thinks this concept will help bring a new 
demographic to town that will be a long term benefit for the City. 
 
Dana Meadows, 103 North Main Street, Galena spoke in favor of the request.  He is the current 
President of the Downtown Business Association and they would like to see it go forward because, 
if nothing else, we would see a complete refurbishment of the buildings downtown that are in bad 
shape.  It will also keep things as historic as possible. 
 
No further testimony was heard in favor or against the request. 
 
APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 0, Section §154.015 sets forth Definitions of the Zoning Code. 

Page 21 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 4 
 

§ Article 4, Table §154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses Table sets forth the land uses and which 
districts they are allowed. 

§ Article 4, Section §154.406 (D) & (H) Principal Commercial and Accessory Residential Land 
Uses set forth the detailed land use descriptions. 

§ Article 6, Table 154.603.1 Minimum Required Parking Spaces sets forth the required parking 
spaces based on land use. 

§ Article 9, Section §154.919 sets forth the Non-Administrative Development Review Common 
Elements of Procedures. 

§ Article 9, Section §154.920 sets forth the procedures for Zoning Code Amendment and 
Rezoning. 

 
DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the 
request by the City of Galena for a text amendment as described above should be approved for the 
following reasons: 
 

(1) Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 
No text or designations were in error at time of adoption. The advent of technology 
and the travel / tourism needs of the market are creating need for change in 
allowable uses for their accommodations. 
 

(2) Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; New trends in travelers’ wants combined with 
technology and the shared economy have generated the need for a proactive 
approach to controlling and providing for vacation rental land uses. 
 

(3) Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse 
impacts on the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the 
rezoning, parking problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may 
generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive 
nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  Each zoning district indicated has properties 
that may be suitable for the proposed uses.  The detailed regulations will reduce the 
potential for nuisances and provide for a compatible use.  Additional control 
measures, already within the code, will further ensure that nuisance properties can be 
dealt with and permissions revoked. 
 

(4) Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted 
plans, and the policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city 
regulations and guidelines; The proposed amendment supports the Comprehensive 
Plan and tourism, identified as the community’s main industry. 
 

Page 22 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 5 
 

(5) Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made 
available concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; 
Not applicable 
 

(6) Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or There 
is an adequate supply of land as the dwellings are already in existence. 
 

(7) Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  The growth of 
tourism and visitors to Galena, combined with the interest of vacation rental 
properties has indicated a need for the land use.  If a provision is made, then it can be 
controlled.  The benefits to the community is allowing a demographic that wishes to 
stay in vacation rentals to stay within the City and spend more time and money here, 
supporting the local economy. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to 
the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by the City of Galena, for a Text 
Amendment as described above should be approved as proposed in the original application. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of October, A.D. 2016, by the Galena Zoning Board of 
Appeals by a vote of 6 ayes, 0 nays, 1 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________   
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 

Page 23 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 1 

Ordinance #O - 1__ - __ __ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 0, SECTION §154.015 – DEFINITIONS AND ARTICLE 4, TABLE 
154.403.1 – PERMITTED LAND USES AND SECTION §154.406 – DETAILED LAND USE DESCRIPTIONS OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

_____________________________________________________________________   
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
 
SECTION I:  Section §154.015 – Definitions of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby amended as follows  
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
Section §154.015 - Definitions 
 
 Accommodations, Vacation Rental:  Any building, or portion thereof, containing a single dwelling unit or 
multiple dwelling units which are available to the public for accommodating guests on a basis of less than 30 days for a 
charge, donation, or any other form of remuneration.   Each dwelling unit constitutes a vacation rental unit.  In residential 
districts, only one vacation rental unit may be owned; in commercial districts, multiple vacation rental units may be 
owned as defined by common ownership. In cases where a single guest room on a single family dwelling property is 
requested, it shall be considered an accessory residential land use.  See section §154.406(D)(18) or §154.406(H)(9). 
 
 
SECTION II:  Table 154.403.1 – Permitted Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined and highlighted) 

 
§ Table begins on following page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 2 

 
Table 154.403.1. Permitted Land Uses 

LA CSR LDR MDR HDR NO PO NC PC GC DC PI LI HI 

Type of Land Use 
 

Principal 
Commercial Land 

Uses 
(154.406 (D)) 

     P P P P P P P P P (1) Office 

     S S P P P P S   (2) Personal or 
Professional Service 

S S    S  P P P P P P P (3) Artisan Studio 

      S P P P P S   (4) Sales and Service, 
Indoor 

         P    P (5) Sales and Service, 
Outdoor Display 

         P     (6) Sales and Service, 
In-Vehicle 

 S S S S S         (7) Accommodations, 
Bed & Breakfast 

  S   S  S S S S    (8) Accommodations, 
Small Inn 

      S  S P S S   (9) Accommodations, 
Hotel/Motel 

      S S P P P S   (10) Entertainment, 
Indoor Commercial 

S         S   S  (11) Entertainment, 
Outdoor Commercial 

            S S (12) Entertainment, 
Adult 

        S P S P P P (13) Maintenance  
Service, Indoor 

         S    P (14) Maintenance 
Service, Outdoor 

S         S    S (15) Commercial 
Animal Boarding 

         P   P P (16) Vehicle Repair and 
Maintenance 

     P  P  P P    (17) House Tour 

S S S S    S  S S    (18) Accommodations, 
Vacation Rental 

P = Permitted by Right (See section 154.402(A))  S = Permitted by a Special Use (See section 154.402 (B)) 

 
 LA   Limited Agricultural  HDR   High Density Residential  PC   Planned Commercial  LI   Light Industrial 
 CSR   Countryside Residential  NO   Neighborhood Office  GC   General Commercial  HI   Heavy Industrial 
 LDR   Low Density Residential  PO   Planned Office   DC   Downtown Commercial   
 MDR   Medium Density Residential NC   Neighborhood Commercial  PI   Planned Industrial 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 3 

Table 154.403.1. Permitted Land Uses 
 

LA	 CSR LDR MDR HDR NO PO NC PC GC DC PI LI HI 

Type of Land Use 
 

Accessory Residential 
Land Uses (154.406 (H)) 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (1) Day Care Home, 
Serving 3 to 12 Children 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (2) Home Occupation, 
Minor 

S S S S S S S S S S S    (3) Home Occupation, 
Major 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (4) Private Kennel 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (5) Outbuildings and 
Recreation Facilities 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (6) Recreational Vehicle 
Storage 

P S             (7) Private Stable 

S S S	 S	 S	          (8) House Tour 

S S S S    S   S    
(9) Accommodations, 
Vacation Rental – Single 
Room 

              Accessory Agricultural 
Land Uses (See 154.406(I)) 

             Accessory Recreational & 
Institutional Land Uses 

(See 154.406(J)) 
             Accessory Commercial 

Land Uses (154.406(K)) 

      P  P P P P P P (1) Company-Provided 
Cafeteria 

     S S S S S S S S S (2) Company-Provided 
Day Care 

      S  S P  S P P (3) Company-Provided 
On-Site Recreation 

     P S P S S P    (4) Dwelling Units 
Above Ground Floor 

      S  S P  P P P (5) Fleet Vehicle Storage 

        S S S    (6) Light Industrial 
Incident to Indoor Sales 

       S P P S S   (7) Outdoor Dining 

       S S P S    (8) Outdoor Display, 
Removable 

         P     (9) Outdoor Display and 
Storage, Permanent 

        S P     (10) Outdoor 
Entertainment 

P = Permitted by Right (See section 154.402(A))  S = Permitted by a Special Use (See section 154.402 (B)) 

 
 LA   Limited Agricultural  HDR   High Density Residential  PC   Planned Commercial  LI   Light Industrial 
 CSR   Countryside Residential  NO   Neighborhood Office  GC   General Commercial  HI   Heavy Industrial 
 LDR   Low Density Residential  PO   Planned Office   DC   Downtown Commercial   
 MDR   Medium Density Residential NC   Neighborhood Commercial  PI   Planned Industrial 
 

Page 26 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 4 

SECTION III:  Section §154.406 (D) – Principal Commercial Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
(D)   Principal Commercial Land Uses. 
 

(18) Accommodations, Vacation Rental.  Any building, or portion thereof, containing a single dwelling unit or 
multiple dwelling units which are available to the public for accommodating guests on a basis of less than 30 days 
for a charge, donation, or any other form of remuneration.   Each dwelling unit constitutes a vacation rental unit.  It 
is the intention of the City to restrict the number of vacation rentals and to encourage the use of single-family 
dwellings for residential purposes in order to maintain the integrity of residential neighborhoods. Therefore, no one 
owner, under the rules of common ownership, may own more than one vacation rental unit in residential districts; 
however, owners may own more than one vacation rental unit within commercially zoned districts.  Vacation rentals 
are limited to properties within the Historic District, those deemed as Historic Landmark properties outside of the 
district or anomalous properties immediately adjacent to the Historic District that are non-contributing. 
 
(a) Regulations: 
 

1. Number of guests. In the case of structures originally constructed as a residence or to provide public 
accommodations, the number of original bedrooms indigenous to a particular structure will be considered.  In the 
case of other nonresidential structures, the number of allowed guests will be determined by the size of the 
building and the regulations for such use found in the city’s adopted Building Codes, Life Safety and Fire Codes, 
Electrical Code, the Americans with Disabilities Act and any other codes of the city.  Off-street parking capacity, 
in required districts, will also be considered for the number of allowed guests. 
 
2. Lot capacity. The capacity of a particular lot to absorb the impact of a vacation rental use shall be 
considered and consideration shall be given to usable lot size, topography, existing vegetation, parking 
requirements, the location of the rental unit(s) on the lot and the proximity of the rental unit(s) to neighboring 
properties in determining the number of guests to be permitted. 
 
3. Availability and impact of parking. Parking off-street shall be required in all districts, except Downtown 
Commercial, and based on the capacity of allowed guests. The physical and aesthetic impact of off-street parking 
located on the lot shall not be detrimental to the existing character of the lot and the surrounding neighborhood. 
It shall be a priority to preserve green space. Generally, the capacity of a lot to accommodate off-street parking 
shall be related to the size and nature of the lot, as stated in (D)(18)(a)(2) above. Rental of parking spaces on 
property other than the lot of the vacation rental shall not be allowed. 
 
4. Requirements For Emergencies. 

a. Emergency Lighting: All vacation rentals shall provide adequate emergency lighting, as determined by 
the Fire Inspector, of the interior of the facility so as to provide any guest with sufficient light to find an 
appropriate exit during a fire or other emergency. 

b. Exit Requirements: All interior and exterior exits shall open from the inside without the use of a key or 
special knowledge. All such exits shall be of a width of thirty inches (30") or greater and shall not be 
blocked or obstructed at any time. 

c. Floor Plan: A floor plan of the building shall be maintained and displayed in prominent location in each 
vacation rental unit. The plan shall show the location of each guestroom and the exit locations to be used 
for such guestrooms in the event of fire. The licensee shall furnish a copy of the floor plan to the Zoning 
Department.  

d. Emergency Telephone: Each guest house or home shall provide a landline telephone for emergency 
purposes. Such phone shall be available twenty-four (24) hours a day. A list of all emergency numbers 
shall be posted next to the telephone. 

 
 
 

Page 27 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 5 

5. Additional information or requirements to be designated in special use permit. (Refer to §154.924 - 
Special Uses.) 

a. No vacation rental shall commence doing business until a guest accommodation license has been issued 
by the city; 

b. Proof of registration with the Illinois Department of Revenue and the City of Galena for hotel/motel 
taxes shall be given to the Zoning Administrator within 90 days after issuance of the guest 
accommodation license; 

c. No signs advertising the vacation rental shall be displayed on the site. 
d. Each vacation rental owner shall maintain a guest register; and 
e. Single-room vacation rentals shall be considered an accessory residential land use.  See §154.406 (H)(9). 

 
6. Application: contents. An application for a vacation rental special use permit shall include such 
information as the Zoning Administrator or the Zoning Board of Appeals may require, but, at a minimum, shall 
include the following: 

a. A site plan depicting all existing conditions of and proposed modifications to buildings, walks, drives, 
parking, landscaping, fencing and lighting. Pertinent elevations or perspective drawings may be 
requested for more accurate review of various details; 

b. Photographs of the proposed vacation rental, accessory buildings and zoning lot; 
c. Floor plan of the proposed vacation rental showing all rooms and designation of room usage. 

 
 
SECTION IV:  Section §154.406 (H) – Accessory Residential Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
(H)   Accessory Residential Land Uses. 
 

(9) Accommodations, Vacation Rental – Single Room.  A single guest room which is available to the public for 
accommodating guests on a basis of less than 30 days for a charge, donation, or any other form of remuneration.   A 
single-room vacation rental may have no more than two sleeping guests and may be within or detached from the 
main dwelling unit. Vacation rentals are limited to only properties with Single Family Dwellings and are within the 
Historic District, those deemed as Historic Landmark properties outside of the district or anomalous properties 
immediately adjacent to the Historic District that are non-contributing. 
 
(a) Regulations: 
 

1.   Number of guests. Single-room vacation rentals are limited to two sleeping guests. 
 
2. Lot capacity. The capacity of a particular lot to absorb the impact of a single-room vacation rental use 
shall be considered and consideration shall be given to usable lot size, topography, existing vegetation, parking 
requirements, the location of the rental unit on the lot and the proximity of the rental unit to neighboring 
properties. 

 
3. Availability and impact of parking. One off-street parking space for the guest room and one additional 
off-street parking space for the owner shall be required in all districts.  The physical and aesthetic impact of off-
street parking located on the lot shall not be detrimental to the existing character of the lot and the surrounding 
neighborhood. It shall be a priority to preserve green space. Generally, the capacity of a lot to accommodate off-
street parking shall be related to the size and nature of the lot, as stated in (H)(9)(a)(2) above. Rental of parking 
spaces on property other than the lot of the vacation rental shall not be allowed. 
 
4. Owner occupancy.  The property shall be owner-occupied when guests are present. 
 
 
 

Page 28 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 6 

5. Additional information or requirements to be designated in special use permit. (Refer to §154.924 - 
Special Uses.) 

a. No vacation rental shall commence doing business until a guest accommodation license has been issued 
by the city; 

b. Proof of registration with the Illinois Department of Revenue and the City of Galena for hotel/motel 
taxes shall be given to the Zoning Administrator within 90 days after issuance of the guest 
accommodation license; 

c. No signs advertising the vacation rental shall be displayed on the site. 
d. Each vacation rental owner shall maintain a guest register; and 
e. A floor plan of the building shall be maintained and displayed in prominent location in the guest room. 

The plan shall show the location of each room and the exit locations to be used for the guest room in the 
event of fire. The licensee shall furnish a copy of the floor plan to the Zoning Department.  

 
6. Application: contents. An application for a vacation rental special use permit shall include such 
information as the Zoning Administrator or the Zoning Board of Appeals may require, but, at a minimum, shall 
include the following: 

a. A site plan depicting all existing conditions of and proposed modifications to buildings, walks, drives, 
parking, landscaping, fencing and lighting. Pertinent elevations or perspective drawings may be 
requested for more accurate review of various details; 

b. Photographs of the proposed vacation rental, accessory buildings and zoning lot; 
c. Floor plan of the proposed vacation rental showing all rooms and designation of room usage. 

 
 
SECTION V:  Table 154.601.3 – Minimum Required Parking Spaces of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
(Additions are shown as underlined and highlighted) 
 

TABLE 154.601.3 
MINIMUM REQUIRED PARKING SPACES 

LAND USE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS 
COMMERCIAL 
…Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 1 per 300 sq. ft. of gross floor area 
Accommodations, Vacation Rental 1 per 4 guests 
Accommodations, Vacation Rental – Single Room See §154.406(H)(9) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29 of 71



Cal. No. 16A-04 7 

SECTION VI: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 
SECTION VII:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage and legal publication in 
pamphlet form. 
 
SECTION VIII:  Passed on the __th day of________________, A.D., 201__, in open Council. 
 
 AYES:      NAYS:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
____________________________________                  _________________________________  
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR    MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  

Page 30 of 71



 
                     

 
 
 

 
Monthly Operations 

Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for  
The City of Galena 
By Jeffery E. Saylor 
Area Manager 
 

 
 
 
October 2016 
 
 

Page 31 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

HIGHLIGHTS OF WATER & WASTEWATER ACTIVITIES 
 

2016 Highlights 
 Repaired 15 water main breaks, 8 service leaks, and replaced 280’ of water main 
 New PDF map showing main breaks and service leaks  
 Cleaned 1558 ft. of sewer main 
 Plant nominated for class 1 plant of the year 
 Processed 485 JULIE locate requests 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plant nominated for Class 1 plant of the year for second time in 14 years 
of operation. The nominations have come from 2 different field operation specialists from the 
IEPA Rockford Regional Office. This is a great picture that really shows off our outstanding 
treatment facility.        

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

2.0  WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 
 
2.1  EFFLUENT QUALITY 
 
As indicated in Table 2.0, the effluent quality for the Galena South Wastewater Treatment Plant 
was within NPDES permit parameters for the month of October 2016.  The discharge monitoring 
reports were electronically submitted to IEPA on November 9, 2016.     
 

Table 2.0 
 October 2016 Wastewater Effluent Quality 

 
Parameters 

 
Permit Limits 

 
Monthly results 

 Min Max Avg Min Max Avg 
Flow, MGD  4.241 1.171 0.454 1.192 0.687 
CBOD5, mg/l  40 20 1.51 3.86 2.47 
CBOD5, lbs/day  391 195 9.9 23.8 15.4 
TSS, mg/l  45 25 3.6 13.6 8.9 
TSS, lbs/day  439 244 18.6 114.4 58.4 
Amm. as(N) mg/l  5.4 1.8 <0.2 0.09 0.02 
Amm. as(N) lbs/day  191 64 <1.95 0.56 0.15 
Fecal Coliform   400   78  
pH, SU 6.0 9.0  8.25 8.43  
 
2.2 COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATIONS 
All lift stations operated properly during the month of October.  All lift stations and wet wells 
were routinely checked for proper operation during the month.    
 
Table 2.2 indicates the monthly and year-to-date totals for both scheduled and unscheduled 
sewer main maintenance operations. There were not any sewer related calls during the month.  
 
 Table 2.3 highlights sewer related calls responded to during October.   
 

Table 2.2 
Sewer Main Maintenance- October 2016 

 
Type Of Sewer 

 
Scheduled Cleaning

(Linear Ft) 

 
Unscheduled Cleaning

(Linear Ft) 

 
Number Of 

Repairs 
 Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Sanitary 900 1558 0 0 0 0 

 
Sewer Back Up Call Outs- October 2015 

 
Date 

 
Address/Location 

 
Owner 
Line 

 
City 
Line 

 
Work Completed 

     

 
 

Page 33 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

3.0  WATER OPERATIONS 
 
3.1 WATER QUALITY 
 
The City of Galena’s monthly fluoride and bacteria water samples were collected and sent to 
outside laboratories for analysis.  All samples were within IEPA and Department of Health water 
quality standards.  All wells are checked on a daily basis to assure a clean and adequate potable 
water supply to City of Galena.    
 
3.2 WATER PRODUCTION 
 
The monthly pumping and water quality data for October 2016 is shown in Table 3.0.    Total 
water produced in October was 13,615,000 gallons. The daily average water produced was 
439,194 gallons per day. Daily water produced is shown in graph below.   
 

Table 3.0  
Water Pumping and Residual Data 

  
Well #5 

 
Well #6 

 
Well #7 

Total Water 
Pumped (gal) 

 
4,432,000 

 
7,883,000 

 
1,300,000 

Daily Avg. Pumped 
(gal) 

 
142,968 

 
254,290 

 
41,935 

Daily Min. Pumped 
(gal) 

 
112,000 

 
181,000 

 
0 

Daily Max. Pumped 
(gal) 

 
198,000 

 
319,000 

 
77,000 

Fluoride IDPH 
Limits (mg/l) 

 
0.65-0.74 

 
0.65-0.74 

 
0.65-0.74 

Fluoride Avg. 
Results Avg. (mg/l) 

 
0.71 

 
0.71 

 
0.74 

Chlorine Residual 
Free Avg. (mg/l) 

 
0.60 

 
0.52 

 
0.57 

 

 
 

Page 34 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

3.2 WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 
All routine maintenance was completed for the month of October 2015.  

 
Table 3.1 

Water Main/Service Break Repairs 
 

Date 
 
Address/Location 

 
City 
Line 

 
Service 

Line 

 
Work Completed 

10/1/16 Leak on Well #5 Service X X Repaired 10/5/16 
10/17/16 Boggess St. X  Repaired 10/17/16 

? 325 Franklin St.   X Repaired 10/18/16 
? 314 Elk St  X Repaired 10/19/16 

10/25/16 Division St & Washington St. X  Repaired 10/25/16 
 
 
3.2 WATER LOSS ACCOUNTING   
 
Un-metered water used in the City of Galena equates to lost revenue in water and sewer user 
fees.  Tracking and accounting for the period of September 16, 2016 – October 15, 2016 and 
accumulated 12 month rolling averages are included in Table 3.2.  The 12 month rolling average 
will give a better indication of long term water loss. 
 

Table 3.2 
Un-Accounted Water Loss as of October15, 2016 

Water 
Production 
(Gallons) 

Metered Water 
Billed 

(Gallons) 

Un-Billed 
Water- 

(Gallons) 

Percent lost 
Un-Billed   

Water 

Percent lost 
Minus known but 
Un-billed Water 

14,109,000 8,717,158 5,391,842 38.22% 33.47% 
Known but Un-metered Water Used (Estimated in Gallons for October) 

 Main Breaks/service leaks before water meter – 600,000 gallons 
 Sewer Jetter/Street Sweeper Water/Outside Sales – 0 gallons  
 Hydrant Use, Fire Department – 0 gallons 
 Hydrant Flushing- 0 gallons 
 Un-metered/metered City accounts – 70,000 (City Hall, Street Dept., Turner Hall, Grant Park 

old WWTP, Pool, etc.) 
12 Month 

Water 
Production 
(Gallons) 

12 Month 
Metered Water 
Billed (Gallons) 

12 Month 
Total Lost 

Water 
(Gallons) 

12 Month 
Rolling 

Average Total 
Lost Water 

12 Month Rolling 
Average Percent 

Lost Minus known 
but Un-metered 

Water 
161,436,000 104,947,603 56,488,397 34.99% 29.61% 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

 

4.0 MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 
 
All routine and preventative maintenance as specified in EMC’s operating agreement was 
completed during October.  Highlights of scheduled and non-scheduled maintenance projects 
performed at the City of Galena water & wastewater facilities during the month of October 
include the following: 

Table 4.0   Summarizes monthly JULIE City utility locates requests, preventative and corrective 
work orders for the month of October 2016 and YTD. 

Table 4.1 summarizes maintenance and repair expenditures for the contract year beginning August 
1, 2015 and ending July 31,2016.    

Table 4.0 
Completed Work Orders 

Work Orders This Month Year-To-Date 
JULIE Utility City Locates Requests 53 485 
Preventive and Corrective Work Orders 33 207 

 
Table 4.1 

Maintenance & Repair Expenditures 

 
Time Period 

Amount 
Expended 

 
Budget 

(Over) Under 
Spent 

Contract Year-to-Date $71,943.46 $78,531.18 $6,587.72 
 
5.0 SAFETY  100% 0f our Behavior – 100% of the Time 
 
5.1 TRAINING 
 
Safety training is completed with daily safety topics, weekly safety reminders, monthly in-house 
training, and going forward there will again be monthly webinars hosted by American Water’s 
new corporate safety director, Lyle Hutnick.  
 
5.2 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 
 
The monthly safety audit was conducted on 10/11/16. Table 5.0 summarizes the facility safety 
status 
  

Table 5.0   
Facility Safety Summary 

 
EMC Monthly Audit 

Safety Rating 

 
Lost Time Accidents

October 2015 

 
Days Worked- No 

Lost Time Accidents 

 
Corrective Action 

Safety Projects Open 
99% 0 4831 0 

 
 

Page 36 of 71



American Water Contract Services - Monthly Operations Report 
City of Galena Water & Wastewater – October 2015 

 
 

6.0 Managers Comments 
 
All in all, it has been a typical year in the water and wastewater departments. Some main breaks, 
service leaks, blocked sewers, customer high usage issues, nothing out of the ordinary. Water 
issues that have captured the national headlines have made the consumer more concerned about 
the water that is delivered to their homes and businesses every day. That is not a bad thing. 
Hopefully it will make people understand that there is a lot of effort put into what it takes to 
provide clean and safe drinking water.  
 
There are two attachments that go along with this month’s report. One is a PDF map that shows 
the location of water leaks that have occured in the calendar year. I started tracking the leaks like 
this a couple of years ago. I thought I would include it now that everyone is using IPads and has 
the ability to view them. Let me know if you have any questions about how it works.  
 
Rather than writing out the details, I am attaching the letter to Andy Lewis that explains how we 
ended up at the end of the contract year that ended July 31, 2016. What is not in that letter is the 
annual increase to our contract that is based on CPI. The CPI was 0.65% which equates to an 
annual increase of $3284.52. Because of the way the agreement was negotiated, this is the first 
increase we have seen in 3 years.  
 
If you ever have questions about your water and wastewater systems, feel free to give me a call 
at the plant (815) 777-9315 or on my cell phone (319) 239-1087. I can also be reach by email at 
jeff.saylor@amwater.com  
       

Page 37 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 10, 2016 

RE:    Vacation Rentals  
 

 
If you approve the ordinance to amend the Zoning Ordinance to permit vacation rentals by 
special use permit, changes will be needed to the Code of Ordinances to facilitate the licensing 
of the vacation rentals.  The following pages show the suggested changes to Chapter 93 and 
Chapter 112 of the code.   
 
Please note that Chapter 112.02 provides an opportunity to limit the number of vacation rental 
licenses available.  For the purposes of initiating discussion, in the draft we have limited the 
number of licenses to 20 in residential districts.  There would not be a limit on the number of 
licenses in the commercial district.  
 
If you are inclined to adopt the suggested changes, with or without modifications, we would 
prepare a formal ordinance for consideration at the November 28 meeting. 
 
Please let me know if you have any question.  Thank you for your consideration.    
 

 

 

Page 38 of 71



FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS 
BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS 

 

§ 93.40  COMPLIANCE REQUIRED. 
 
   No person shall operate a guest accommodations, house or a bed and breakfast establishment 
(hereinafter called “guest house”), or a guest suite, as defined under the Galena Zoning Ordinance, unless 
the guest accommodation house or guest suite complies with the fire prevention and safety requirements 
set out in this subchapter.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner of a guest accommodation house for 
which a special use permit is in effect as of the effective date hereof shall have until May 1, 1988 to 
comply with all of the requirements of this subchapter, except that such owner shall have until January 1, 
1989 to comply with the requirements of § 93.42 hereof. 
('69 Code, § 7-60)  (Ord. 0-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
Penalty, see § 10.99 
 
Cross-reference: 
   Guest Accommodations Bed and breakfast establishments, see Chapter 112 
 

§ 93.41  MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. 
 
   Bed and Breakfasts and Vacation Rentals A guest house shall meet the requirements for one- and two-
family dwellings set out in chapter 22 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, and the additional requirements 
set forth in this chapter.  A Small Inn guest suite shall meet the requirements for lodging set out it chapter 
20 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, and the additional requirements set forth in this chapter.  In 
buildings where a guest accommodation suite is not the only use, the other use(s) shall meet the NFPA 
requirements applicable to that use(s). 
('69 Code, § 7-61)  (Ord. 0-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 
10.99 
 

§ 93.42  SMOKE DETECTORS. 
 

(A) Smoke detectors must be either permanently wired into the guest accommodation house or guest 
suite structure's AC power line, with battery back-up or be otherwise interrelated so as to comprise 
a system that is in the sole judgment of the Chief of the Galena Fire Prevention Bureau of equal or 
greater value.  In the event that a smoke detector system is once approved by the Chief of the Fire 
Prevention Bureau, it shall thereafter be deemed to be a system that complies with the 
requirements of this section.  Multi-station units shall be wired or otherwise constituted so that the 
activation of one detector will activate all of the detectors in the guest accommodation structure 
house or guest suite or will activate other centrally located warning devices in the 
structure.  Smoke detectors shall be installed as follows:  one in each guest room used for sleeping 
purposes; one in each hallway or corridor on each floor; one in each living room or lounge area; 
one in each dining room; one in basement and in each workshop area.  There shall be at least one 
smoke detector on each floor of the guest accommodation structure house or guest suite, but 
excluding unoccupied attics. 
 

   (B)   The guest accommodation house or guest suite owner shall provide such periodic written reports 
relating to smoke detector testing and maintenance as shall be required by the Fire Prevention Bureau. 
('69 Code, § 7-62)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 
10.99 

Page 39 of 71



 

§ 93.43  REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN ROOMS. 
 

(A) All guest rooms located above the second floor or in the basement must have two exits approved 
by the Fire Prevention Bureau.  All vertical openings to any such floor or basement in which a 
guest room is located shall be enclosed with enclosures continuous from floor to floor, which 
enclosures shall be by fire barriers such as walls or partition assemblies.  Any such fire barrier 
shall have a minimum of one hour fire resistance rating. 
 

(B) Passageways used for exiting from any such floor or basement and stairways used for exiting from 
any such floor or basement shall be enclosed by materials that have a minimum of one hour fire 
resistance rating. 

 
(C) Self-closing doors approved by the Fire Prevention Bureau shall be used in any such stairway used    

for exiting from any such floor or basement. 
 

('69 Code, § 7-63)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty,      
see § 10.99 

 

§  93.44  WORKSHOP AREAS. 
 
   Any workshop or other area determined by the Fire Prevention Bureau to contain equipment or 
materials constituting a potential fire hazard shall be enclosed with fire resistant materials. 
('69 Code, § 7-64)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 
10.99 
 

§  93.45  INTERIOR FINISHES. 
 
   All interior finishes and floor coverings in the guest accommodation house or guest suite shall meet Life 
Safety Code regulations so as to restrict the spread of fire.  Cellular, foam, plastic and other similar 
materials shall not be used for interior finishes. 
('69 Code, § 7-65)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 
10.99 
 

§ 93.46  EXIT REGULATIONS AND FLOOR PLAN. 
 
   (A)   All hallways, corridors and stairways used as exits shall be adequately lighted at all 
times.  Emergency lighting shall meet section 5-9 of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code. 
   (B)   A kitchen exit shall not be considered as an approved fire exit in a guest house where breakfast is 
served. 
   (C)   All interior and exterior exits shall open from the inside without the use of a key or special 
knowledge.  All such exits shall be the width of a normal door and shall not be blocked or obstructed at 
any time. 
   (D)   A floor plan of the guest accommodation house or guest suite shall be maintained in each guest 
room, which plan shall show the location of each such guest room and the exit locations to be used for 
such guest room in the event of fire. 
('69 Code, § 7-66)  (Ord. O-88-06, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 
10.99 

Page 40 of 71



CHAPTER 112:  GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS BED AND BREAKFAST 
ESTABLISHMENTS 
 

§ 112.01  DEFINITIONS. 
 
GUEST ACCOMMODATIONS.  A Bed and Breakfast, Small Inn or Vacation Rental as defined in the 
Zoning Code of Ordinances.   BED AND BREAKFAST.   An owner occupied single family dwelling, 
having historic or architectural significance, providing accommodations for a charge to the public with no 
more than five guest rooms for rent that shall afford its guests the opportunity to visit with the owner in a 
home like environment. 
   GUEST SUITE or GUEST APARTMENT.   A building or portion thereof designed or used for 
purposes of accommodating guests, with a group of rooms common to an apartment, though a kitchen 
may or may not be provided.  A guest suite or guest apartment must be supervised within the building or 
on-site. 
   LODGING.   Buildings or groups of buildings under the same management that provide sleeping 
accommodations for a total of 16 or fewer persons on either a permanent or transient basis, with or 
without meals. 
(Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-05, passed 2-23-98) 
 

§ 112.02  LICENSE REQUIRED. 
 
   No person shall operate guest accommodations a bed and breakfast establishment (hereinafter called 
"guest house"), a guest suite or a place of lodging as defined above, without first having obtained a 
license for the guest house, guest suite or lodging establishment from the city.  A license for a guest house 
or guest suite may not be issued until the owner has obtained a special use permit for the appropriate land 
use guest house or guest suite from the city.  There shall be a total limit of 20 licenses issued for 
Accommodations, Vacation Rentals / Vacation Rentals – Single Room in residential zoning districts in 
the City. 
('69 Code, § 12-108)  (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 110.99 
 

§ 112.03  INSPECTION REPORTS REQUIRED TO OBTAIN LICENSE. 
 
   No license shall be issued until the following inspection reports have been filed with the city: 
   (A)   A fire inspection report from the Fire Chief stating that the guest accommodation house or guest 
suite complies with fire and life safety regulations applicable to guest accommodations houses or guest 
suites, as provided for in Chapter 93 of this code, and that the lodging establishment complies with the 
fire and life safety regulations, as provided for in the NFPA Life Safety Code. 
   (B)   A health inspection report from the Jo Daviess County Health Department stating that the guest 
accommodation house, guest suite or lodging establishment complies with state and county public health 
regulations.  Health inspections shall only be required for guest suites located in the same building as a 
food service business. 
   (C)   A Building Department report from an authorized Galena Building Official stating that the guest 
accommodation house, guest suite or lodging establishment complies with applicable Building Code, 
Electrical Code and Plumbing Code regulations. applicable to guest houses, guest suites or 
lodging.  Guest houses and guest suites shall be subject to the same regulations applicable to single-
family dwellings.  In buildings where a guest accommodation suite is not the only use, separation of the 
uses shall be in accordance with the most restrictive regulation for the subject uses. 
('69 Code, § 12-109)  (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-

Page 41 of 71



05, passed 2-23-98) 

§ 112.04  LIABILITY INSURANCE. 
 
   Prior to obtaining a guest accommodations house or lodging license, the owner shall provide the city 
with proof that liability insurance coverage in an amount of not less than $500,000 per occurrence exists 
with respect to such establishment. 
('69 Code, § 12-110)  (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98) 
 

§ 112.05  INITIAL LICENSE AND ANNUAL LICENSE AND FEES. 
 
   (A)   Each applicant for a guest accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall pay an 
initial license fee of $150.  Said fee shall be paid prior to the inspections being made pursuant to § 112.03 
hereof.  Said fee shall be non-refundable, even if the guest house, guest suite or lodging license is never 
issued. 
   (B)   Prior to March 1 of each year, each guest accommodations owner house owner, guest suite 
licensee or lodging licensee who wishes to renew their his license for the next fiscal year beginning May 
1, shall pay an annual license fee of $130.  Upon payment of said fee, reports in accordance with § 112.03 
hereof shall again be completed and submitted to the city prior to May 1 of such year.  An annual guest 
accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall be issued upon payment of the license fee and 
upon the filing of said inspection reports. 
('69 Code, § 12-111)  (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98) 
 

§ 112.06  DISPLAY AND FORM OF LICENSE. 
 
   The guest accommodations house, guest suite or lodging license shall be conspicuously displayed near 
the area within the guest house, guest suite or lodging establishment.  The guest accommodations house, 
guest suite or lodging license shall be in such form and shall include such information as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the city. 
('69 Code, § 12-112) (Ord. O-88-5, passed 2-22-88; Am. Ord. O-98-01, passed 1-26-98; Am. Ord. O-98-
05, passed 2-23-98)  Penalty, see § 110.99 
 

Page 42 of 71



Page 43 of 71



Page 44 of 71



Page 45 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 26, 2016 

RE:    Insurance Renewal  
 
At the end of December, the city’s workers’ compensation, liability, auto, portable equipment 
and public official’s insurance policies with the Illinois Municipal League Risk Management 
Association (IMLRMA) will expire.  To extend coverage, the IMLRMA has quoted a new 
premium for next year and has again offered the 85/130 Minimum Maximum option.   
 
As you will recall, five years ago we complete the arduous process of bidding our insurance 
coverage for the first time in many years.  Three firms submitted bids.  The IMLRMA presented 
the low bid and we renewed our coverage with the group.  
 
Effective for the year beginning January 1, 2017, the proposed policy carries a premium of 
$256,481.  This represents 3.7 percent increase from last year’s premium of $247,226.  With 
about 800 municipalities in the ILMRMA insurance pool, the renewal rate is calculated from a 
combination of the loss experience of the whole pool as well as that of the individual 
municipality.  The value of insured property and the payroll also contribute to the premium.   
 
By committing to the 85/130 Minimum Maximum (Min/Max) option, the city may reduce the 
proposed premium $29,797.  With this savings the City will pay a premium of $226,684 
(includes 1 percent discount for paying entire premium by November 20).  The potential savings 
with the 85/130 program is an incentive for our municipality to practice sound risk 
management and avoid claims that may result in losses.    
 
The structure of the Min/Max option is relatively straightforward.  If losses are incurred above 
85 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims, the city will be responsible 
for each dollar up to 130 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims.  In this 
worst‐case scenario, the city would pay $311,496 for calendar year 2017.  Only claims filed 
during the 2017 calendar year would be counted for the purpose of determining if the city 
exceeds the 85 percent threshold.  If the city does not exceed the 85 percent threshold, the 
total premium for the year would be 85 percent (plus administrative costs) or $226,684. 
 

 

Page 46 of 71



2 of 3 

Though we have incurred significant losses in some years, the city’s long‐term loss history 
confirms that the Min/Max option is effective method of reducing insurance costs.  The city has 
saved more than $130,000 from participating in the Min/Max since joining the program in 
1998. 
 
Our current Liability Fund budget contains $260,240 for the insurance premium costs.  This 
amount exceeds the proposed premium of $226,684 by more than $30,000.  I recommend you 
authorize the city’s participation in the IMLRMA’s 85/130 Min/Max plan by passing the 
attached ordinance (including waiving the second reading) and by authorizing the payment of 
the premium.    
    

Page 47 of 71



3 of 3 

Ordinance #O‐16‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE IMLRMA MINIMUM/MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

  ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena, a member in good standing of the 
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Association and party to the IMLRMA 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Contract, has been fully apprised of the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement which amends and supplements the IMLRMA 
Declarations pages dated 01/01/2017 to 01/01/2018 and all endorsements thereto. 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena finds it to be in the best interest of the 
municipality to make its IMLRMA contribution in accordance with the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement.   
 
  Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena: 
 

1. That the execution of the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement for 
a one (1) year period beginning 01/01/2017 and ending 01/01/2018 is hereby 
authorized. 

2. That the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby granted authority to execute the 
IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Agreement which amends and supplements the 
IMLRMA Declarations pages dated 01/01/2017 to 01/01/2018 and all endorsements 
thereto. 

3. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.   
 
 
AYES:    
 
NAYS:    
 
PRESENT:    
 
ABSENT:    

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
           Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 

Page 48 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 1, 2016 

RE:    Former Jo Daviess County Service Company Site Investigation 
 
At the October 11 city council meeting, the council tentatively agreed to lease space to Fever 
River Outfitters, subject to a satisfactory lease being prepared.  The lease has not been 
prepared yet as we are waiting for more information from Fever River Outfitters about the 
proposed use.  During discussion about the lease, the council expressed interest in a review of 
the site by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  On the November 14 agenda is a 
resolution that would formerly communicate the city’s interest in commencing the 
investigation.   
 
As explained during the October 11 meeting, the subject property is the site of the former Jo 
Daviess Service Company and was used for petroleum storage and manufactured gas for 
decades.  Today, most of the property is tree covered.  The property is zoned Heavy Industrial.  
Access to the property is from the bottom of Gear Street, south across the railroad tracks on 
South Main Street.  I am attaching a map of the area with the subject property highlighted in 
green.   
 
The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) evaluated the property in 1995 and 
concluded “the site does not pose enough of an immediate threat to human health or the 
environment to warrant a response action”.  The proposed investigation would update the 
1995 conclusions.  The investigation would be conducted by the EPA at no charge to the City.  If 
any remediation actions are recommended from the investigation, the EPA offers funding for 
the clean‐up.   
 
Should you approved the resolution, the investigation would likely be completed in the spring 
of 2017.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  

 

Page 49 of 71



0 30 60 90 120 150
ScaleBar

Feet

Page 50 of 71



Resolution No. R‐16‐ 
 

 RESOLUTION REQUESTING ASSISTANCE AND PARTICIPATION OF THE ILLINOIS 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION OF CERTAIN 

PROPERTY  

 
  WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to promote the environmental assessment, 
subsequent remediation, if necessary, and redevelopment of abandoned and/or hazardous 
lands within the City of Galena; and 
 
  WHEREAS, an underutilized property, formerly the Jo Daviess County Service Company, 
located on South Main Street, Property Identification Number 22‐101‐371‐00, must be 
investigated as part of the planning for the abandoned property; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the redevelopment options for the subject property cannot be fully 
identified until the environmental conditions on the property have been established; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency can assist the City of Galena in 
identifying environmental conditions on the above mentioned property; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to insure that any environmental condition which 
may pose a threat to human health or the environment is properly addressed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GALENA: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City of Galena does hereby request the assistance and participation of 
the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, and resolves to assist them in any manner that 
will provide for the timely and comprehensive environmental investigation of the subject 
property. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the municipality authorizes and empowers the proper officials, agents 

and employees of the municipality to do all acts and actions necessary to execute all documents 
and instruments as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions and intent of 
the Resolution or to effectuate its purpose. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ________ day of _____________________, 2016 
 
Approved this     day of      , 2016. 

                         
          Terry Renner, Mayor 
Attest:  _         
              Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 51 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 9, 2016 

RE:    Tax Levy 
 
 
Before the last Tuesday in December, the City must adopt a tax levy ordinance for property 
taxes to be collected next fiscal year.  Prior to considering and adopting the ordinance, the 
council must make a motion communicating the amount of taxes the City expects to levy.  This 
report is intended to provide you with the information you need to make the necessary motion. 
 
I have completed the calculations needed to determine our revenue needs and the property tax 
revenue available under the voter‐approved Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL).  I 
used the assessed value estimate from the County Assessor in estimating the available property 
tax revenue.  In the same manner as in recent years, I am presenting two options.  First, levy 
the same amount as last year.  This would be the second year in a row for this option as you 
chose to freeze taxes last year.  Second, levy the maximum amount available under PTELL.    
 
In preparing the levy options, I calculated expected revenues, expenses and fund balances for 
all funds supported by the tax levy for the current and next fiscal year.  My goal was to levy 
sufficiently to insure that each fund finishes the coming year in compliance with the Minimum 
Fund Balance Policy.  For most funds, this means the fund would end the fiscal year with a 
balance of at least 30 percent of annual expenses.    
 
With the first option, the city would collect $1,339,527 of property taxes in 2016, the same as in 
2015.  The levy rate would decrease from $1.38 to $1.33 per $100 of equalized assessed value.   
With the second option, the city would collect all of the new tax dollars available under PTELL.  
Taking into account an expected increase in city‐wide equalized assessed value of current 
property, the value of new construction, and a very minimal Consumer Price Index increase of 
0.7%, the City could collect a maximum of $23,619 new tax dollars (last year we passed on the 
ability to collect $16,000 new dollars).   
 
If we were to collect the maximum, our tax (levy) rate would increase slightly from $1.38 to 
$1.36 per $100 of equalized assessed value.  The total dollars collected from the levy would 
increase from $1,339,527 to $1,363,146.  Under this scenario, I would anticipate all levy 

 

Page 52 of 71



2 of 5 

supported funds ending next fiscal year in compliance with the Minimum Fund Balance Policy.   
The property tax rate for the General Corporate tax fund would be at the maximum level 
required to be eligible for State of Illinois and Jo Daviess County funding for the Dewey Avenue 
bridge replacement (refer to Petition adopted at the October 27, 2014 city council meeting).    
 
According to the Truth in Taxation law, the City must conduct a public hearing on the proposed 
tax levy if the total levy dollars levied are expected to exceed the previous year’s levy dollars by 
more than five percent.  Levying the maximum would result in an increase of only 1.7% of 
actual levy dollars over last year.  A public hearing is not required with either option.   
 
To make the official determination of whether a public hearing is required, you are required to 
adopt a motion stating the amount of property tax the City expects to levy.   The recommended 
motion would state, “The amount of property taxes the City of Galena expects to levy in 
2016, to be collected in 2017, is $ ______________.”    
 
At the meeting following your decision on the amount you expect to levy, the first reading of 
the actual tax levy ordinance would be presented.  The ordinance must be approved not later 
than the Tuesday, December 27 meeting. 
 
I have attached an Addendum to this report that provides more detail about how the levy is 
calculated, the maximum levy by fund, as well as a historical view of the City’s tax levy.   
 
 

Page 53 of 71



3 of 5 

ADDENDUM 
 
This report is intended to explain the effect of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law 
(PTELL) on the tax levy, the individual components of the levy and the maximum levy for fiscal 
year 2017‐18.    
  
PTELL 
From one year to the next, the amount we may increase our tax levy is prescribed by PTELL.  
The 1991 law was intended to limit property tax growth by allowing a taxing district to receive a 
limited inflationary increase in taxes on existing property, plus an additional amount for new 
construction.  
 
With PTELL, a formula was established for calculating the “limiting rate” or the maximum levy 
rate available to the taxing district each year.  The limiting rate dictates the total taxes that may 
be levied and collected.  Only two factors can increase the limiting rate.  First, the formula takes 
into account the annual cost of living (CPI) increase.  This year the CPI adjustment is 0.7% (0.8% 
in the current year).  Second, the formula considers the equalized assessed value (EAV) of any 
new construction or annexations that have occurred during the year.  For the coming levy year, 
our new construction (and annexations) is estimated to have an equalized value of $1,046,620 
(following an increase of only $409,946 in the current year).  This is based on an estimate from 
the Jo Daviess County Assessor.    
 
The limiting rate for the coming tax year is estimated as 1.36% of the total city‐wide EAV of 
$100,176,222.  Expressed another way, the limiting rate is $1.36 per $100 of EAV.  The limiting 
rate would be a slight decrease from $1.38 the current year.   
 
Multiplying the limiting rate by the total estimated city EAV of $100,176,222 results in a 
maximum tax levy for the coming year of $1,363,146.  This calculation is expressed as follows: 
 

$100,176,222 (total city EAV) x 1.36% (limiting rate) = $1,363,146 (maximum levy) 
 

The amount of new dollars that we can add to our tax base is calculated as the difference 
between the maximum levy ($1,363,146) and the current year levy ($1,339,527).  The 
difference or the amount of new dollars we may levy is $23,619 or 1.7% more than the current 
year.  This calculation is expressed as follows:    
 

$1,363,146 (maximum levy) ‐ $1,339,527 (current year levy) = $23,619 (new tax dollars) 
 

According to the PTELL, if a taxing body does not levy for all of the new dollars allowed by the 
limiting rate, it may never use the tax dollar value of the CPI or new construction from that year 
in determining future tax levies.  If a taxing body consistently levies for less than is allowed by 
the limiting rate, the loss of potential tax dollars is compounded.  A public referendum is the 
only way to levy at a rate greater than the limiting rate.     
 

Page 54 of 71



4 of 5 

Tax Levy Components  
After determining the maximum levy allowed by PTELL, we must decide the amount of the 
available new dollars to collect and how to distribute the dollars across the individual tax funds.  
The tax levy is comprised of 18 separate levies or funds.  Current fund balances and anticipated 
non‐property tax revenues and expenses are evaluated to determine the amount of taxes to 
collect in each individual fund.   Assuming the maximum levy, the $1,363,146 of tax dollars 
could be effectively distributed across the various funds is shown in Table 1.  The actual levy 
rate for each fund is also shown along with the rate and taxes levied in the 2016.   

 
Table 1.   Proposed Tax Levy 

 
 

Levy Fund 
2016
Actual 
Rate 

2016
Actual 
Tax 

2017
Proposed 
Rate 

2017 
Proposed 

Tax 

Corporate  0.4375 $423,436  0.4375  $438,271  

Street and Bridge1  0.0000 $‐    0.0000 $0 

Police Protection  0.0398 $38,550  0.0411  $10  

School Crossing Guard  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Street Lighting  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Audit  0.0186 $18,002  0.0170  $17,000  

Emergency Services  0.0009 $861  0.0009  $857  

Garbage  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Unemployment Insurance  0.0315 $30,507  0.0050  $5,000  

Workman’s Compensation  0.0517 $50,009  0.0913  $91,500  

Liability Insurance  0.1725 $167,003  0.1318  $132,000  

IMRF  0.0227 $22,009  0.1008  $101,000  

Parks  0.0504 $48,789  0.0211  $21,143  

Social Security  0.2025 $196,010  0.1358  $136,000  

Levee/Flood Control  0.0000 $‐    0.0699  $70,000   

Fire Protection  0.3557 $344,256  0.3497  $350,314  

Water Treatment  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Chlorination  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

TOTAL 1.3840 $1,339,527 $1.3607  $1,363,146 

 
When the tax levy is passed and the taxes are collected, the revenue generated by the 18 
individual funds can only be used for the respective purpose of each fund.  For instance, the 
Liability Insurance tax can only be used to pay for the city’s liability insurance.  Likewise, the 
Audit Tax can only be used to pay for the annual audit.  The only individual fund that can be 
expended or used for virtually any purpose is the Corporate Tax.  This tax is deposited in the 
General Fund.  The proposed levy maximizes the General Corporate tax as required to be 
eligible for state and county funding for the Dewey Avenue bridge project.   
 
As a result of a 2006 change in the PTELL law, any individual tax levy funds that have not been 
levied for three consecutive years can only be returned to the levy by referendum approval 
from the voters.  I am proposing to levy a minimum ($10 in some instances) in every fund to 

                                                 
1 The city does not levy for Street and Bridge since the overlapping townships levy this tax and reimburse the city.  The reimbursement is for the 
maintenance of streets that are located both in the city and in their townships. 

Page 55 of 71



5 of 5 

avoid losing any individual levies.  On November 8, 2016, Galena voters approved an individual 
tax levy for maintenance of the flood protection system.  This was a renewal of a levy that 
existed for many years, but expired last year.  I am proposing to levy $70,000 in the Flood Fund 
to cover expenses and to attempt to maintain a fund balance of 30% of annual expenses.   

 
Historical Comparison 
A summary of the tax levy collected, the percent change of the collection from the previous 
year, and the actual tax levy rate is shown in Table 2.    

 
Table 2.  Galena Property Tax Comparison 1995‐2017 

 
Year 

Collected 
Levy 

Collected 
Percent 
Change 

Levy 
Rate  

1995  $719,361 9.7%  2.37 

1996  $719,626 0.0%  2.17 

1997  $782,904 8.8%  2.02 

1998  $801,666 2.4%  1.87 

1999  $811,012 1.2%  1.73 

2000  $822,879 1.5%  1.76 

2001  $822,439 ‐0.1%  1.63 

2002  $843,539 2.6%  1.54 

2003  $848,003 0.5%  1.49 

2004  $880,679 3.9%  1.48 

2005  $921,318 4.6%  1.45 

2006  $978,284 6.2%  1.42 

2007  $1,006,075 2.8%  1.37 

2008  $1,046,599 4.0%  1.32 

20092  $1,301,301 24.3%  1.27 

2010  $1,323,108 1.7%  1.27 

2011  $1,365,624 3.2%  1.30 

2012  $1,378,790 1.0%  1.34 

2013  $1,378,879 0.0%  1.38 

2014  $1,319,506 ‐4.3%  1.36 

2015  $1,341,412 1.7%  1.38 

2016  $1,339,527 0.0%  1.38 

20173  $1,363,146 1.7%  1.36 

           
As shown in the table, Galena’s levy rate has decreased from a high of $2.37 in 1995 to a low in 
2009 and 2010 of $1.27.  The rate has remained relatively flat over the last six years.   
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

                                                 
2 Value from expired TIF district returned to tax base. 
3 Based on the maximum levy. 

Page 56 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 9, 2016 

RE:    Pay and Display Parking Terminals  
 
 
More than two years ago, we installed parking payment boxes in the parking lots to next to Galena 
Cellars Winery and City Hall.  We charge five dollars for all day parking.  Customers insert folded 
bills into numbered slots corresponding with their parking space.  Revenues from the two lots 
have been good, totally more than $32,000 annually.  I am writing to propose the purchase and 
installation of electronic pay and display parking terminals in both lots to make the parking 
process more efficient for customers and staff.  
 
Last year we installed a MacKay Guardian parking machine at the Commerce Street parking lot.  
The machine accepts cash, coins and credit cards.   The machine has been easy to use for those 
parking and easy for our staff to collect and receipt the revenue.  This is in contrast to the 
challenges of folding bills tight to insert in the manual boxes and the extremely laborious task of 
unfolding and counting the bills.  
 
I request that you consider purchasing and installing two new Guardian parking machines.  One 
would be installed inside the parking kiosk at the lot next to the winery.  The other would be 
installed on the Commerce Street frontage of the City Hall lot.  The machines, including 
installation, cost $12,326 each or $24,652 total.  Based on the historical parking revenues from the 
lots, I would expect the cost of the units to be fully recouped in less than one year.  Our original 
pay and display terminals lasted about 10 years before they were obsolete. 
 
Revenue from the paid lots is deposited in the Parking and Shuttle Fund.  The fund is expected to 
have a year‐end balance of approximately $92,000.  With almost no other annual expenses there 
are sufficient funds for the purchase.  A budget amendment is included on the November 14 
agenda to add the expense to the current budget.  Ideally, the machines would be installed before 
the end of the year.  
 
Thank you for your consideration.   
 

 

 

Page 57 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 10, 2016 

RE:    Leak Locating Equipment  
 

 
The mayors of the villages and cities in Jo Daviess County and the County Board Chairperson 
meet regularly to share information and look for opportunities to partner.  The officials recently 
identified that the cities and villages share a common issue with attempting to locate leaks in 
their water systems.  A cost‐saving solution is proposed that would require an upfront 
investment from each community. 
 
The officials and staff evaluated professional leak detection equipment and have identified the 
portable LV15 leak detection system for $27,140.  Six communities are interested in 
participating and sharing equally in the cost.  The cost would be $4,523.  The unit would be 
stored in Galena and checked out as needed by each community.   Any repair costs would be 
split equally among the communities.  The unit carries a five‐year warranty.  Training would be 
provided for the staff of each community. 
 
Leak detection is an essential element of managing a public water system.  Identifying leaks 
saves on water production costs, prevents damage to streets, and reduces waste of one of our 
vital natural resources.  Our community has traditionally contracted for leak detection services.  
This year, for example, we spent $3,400 for a city‐wide leak detection survey.   
 
Our staff is supportive of purchasing the equipment to improve our leak detection program and 
save money over time.  Although we did not budget for the purchase, sufficient funds are 
available in the “vehicle” expense line item (51.42.831.01) in the Water Fund.   
 
Please let me know if you have any question.  Thank you for your consideration.    
 

 

 

Page 58 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 9, 2016 

RE:    Sproule Oil Bulk Tank Removal  
 
 
Our staff has been attempting to facilitate the removal of the abandoned bulk storage tanks 
between Jefferson Street and Madison Street in the flats on the east side of the river.  The 
tanks were used for many years for petroleum storage by the now defunct Sproule Oil 
Company.  I am writing to report the scope of the project, the status of the project, and 
financial assistance from a community partner. 
 
Situated in the flood plain, the improvements on the 0.68‐acre site are obsolete and the site 
itself is not buildable.  The goal of the project is remove all made man features from the 
property and return the site to greenspace.  The project includes the removal of the six large 
metal tanks and related piping, the removal of the concrete supports for the tanks, the removal 
of the building, and finally the leveling and seeding of the empty site.  Prior to removing the 
tanks and pipes, the insides must be professionally cleaned to remove any contaminants.   
Cleaning was completed on November 9.  
 

 
 
Property owner, Ron Sproule, has signed an agreement allowing all of the work to be 
completed.  He also agrees to quit claim the property to the City of Galena at the request of the 
City should the clean‐up project be completed.   

 

Page 59 of 71



 
The Community Development Fund of Galena (CDFG) has agreed to cover some of the major 
expenses associated with the removal of the tanks.  As shown in Table 1, the CDFG has 
committed to pay for the initial brush clearing and fence removal, the tank and pipe cleaning 
and the tank removal.  These costs total $21,281.      
 
The remainder of the site clean‐up costs, including the removal of the wood building and final 
grading and seeding, would total $8,400.  Prices for this work were obtained from two 
contractors, Louie’s Trenching Service and Mike and Nick Sproule Construction.  Louie’s 
Trenching Service provided the low quote, $2,295 less than Sproule.   
 
If the City were to acquire the property by quit claim, the total property tax liability would be 
approximately $1,900.  There is also an IRS lien on the property of $4,386.  We have applied 
with the IRS to have the lien released and expect it will be released.   
 

Table 1. Bulk Tank Removal Costs 
 

 
To minimize damage to the grounds by heavy equipment, removal of the tanks and piping will 
likely occur after the ground freezes.  The removal of the concrete and building could occur 
early this winter or in the spring should the city council wish to proceed with the project.  A 
financial commitment of approximately $10,400 would be needed to complete the work and 
pay the taxes.  Funding could be committed with a budget amendment or as part of next year’s 
budget.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   Thank you. 

 
 

Item  Contractor  Cost   Responsible  

Title search to determine any 
encumbrances  

H.B. Wilkinson $100   
City of Galena 

Lift for tank inspection, removal of 
brush, trees and fencing 

White’s Lawn 
Care  

$1,450   
Community Development Fund 

Cleaning of six tanks and all piping  Environmental 
Management 
Services, Inc. 

$10,831 

Community Development Fund 

Removal of bulk tanks  Dittmer 
Recycling 

$9,000   
Community Development Fund 

Concrete removal, building removal, 
seeding 

  $8,400   
City of Galena 

Property taxes  Jo Daviess 
County 

$1,932.58   
City of Galena 

TOTAL    $31,713.58     

Page 60 of 71



 
 

Page 61 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ABNEY, ROBERT (120321)
103116 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/31/2016 275.00 58.54.929.00

Total ABNEY, ROBERT (120321): 275.00

AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005)
EMCI-00005 1 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 10/31/2016 36,569.25 51.42.515.00
EMCI-00005 2 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 10/31/2016 36,569.26 52.43.515.01

Total AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005): 73,138.51

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
110116 1 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 11/01/2016 392.89 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 392.89

BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71)
5132 1 Invoice CRACK FILLING 10/22/2016 9,624.88 01.41.514.02

Total BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71): 9,624.88

BURTON, ASHLEY (120320)
102816 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/28/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total BURTON, ASHLEY (120320): 200.00

CAMPBELL, MARY V. (120326)
110716 1 Invoice CR BALANCE REFUND 11/07/2016 3.43 98.115.0

Total CAMPBELL, MARY V. (120326): 3.43

CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909)
298278 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM 11/02/2016 121.49 01.21.471.15

Total CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909): 121.49

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
104506 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/20/2016 117.83 01.41.614.04
104650 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/26/2016 117.79 01.41.614.04
104770 1 Invoice WASHOUTS 10/31/2016 129.24 20.25.515.00

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 364.86

CUB SCOUT PACK 93 (119712)
103116 1 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 10/31/2016 86.00 58.54.553.00
110916 1 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 11/09/2016 80.00 01.11.929.07
110916 2 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 11/09/2016 59.00 01.21.549.00

Total CUB SCOUT PACK 93 (119712): 225.00

DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789)
4590 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 10/16/2016 2,050.00 01.41.517.02

Page 62 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789): 2,050.00

DEVOE FLORAL (120317)
11533 1 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 10/15/2016 50.00 01.11.929.01

Total DEVOE FLORAL (120317): 50.00

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1601155 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 10/17/2016 234.29 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 234.29

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
111416 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 11/14/2016 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 225.00

DONOHUE, KAITLYN (120322)
102516 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/25/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total DONOHUE, KAITLYN (120322): 200.00

DRIVE LINE, INC. (285)
219681 1 Invoice NEW TRUCK 09/22/2016 176.94 01.41.840.01

Total DRIVE LINE, INC. (285): 176.94

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
117604 1 Invoice FIRE EXTINGUISHER FIL 10/24/2016 37.70 22.22.929.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 37.70

EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950)
P03483 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/17/2016 158.92 01.41.613.11

Total EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950): 158.92

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
3764 1 Invoice RESTROOM REPAIRS 10/24/2016 89.20 01.13.511.03

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 89.20

FERRARI, JASON (120324)
102416 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/24/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total FERRARI, JASON (120324): 200.00

GALENA ARC (850)
111416 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  11/14/2016 50.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 50.00

Page 63 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00051756 1 Invoice COATSWORTH BID NOTI 10/13/2016 196.65 01.14.553.00
00051854 1 Invoice TREASURERS REPORT 10/19/2016 627.00 01.14.553.00
00051902 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 10/21/2016 55.10 01.16.563.00
00051916 1 Invoice WELL 6 BID NOTICE 10/24/2016 57.00 51.42.512.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 935.75

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
110116 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 11/01/2016 8.00 01.13.654.00
110116 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 11/01/2016 25.00 22.22.538.01
110116 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 11/01/2016 30.00 01.21.651.00
110116 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 11/01/2016 27.00 58.54.654.01

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 90.00

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
110116 1 Invoice BUILDING MAINTENANC 11/01/2016 10.17 01.21.651.00

27762 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIAL COUNT 10/04/2016 38.00 01.41.614.04

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 48.17

GALENA ROTARY CLUB (120318)
110116 1 Invoice ROTARY ROUNDTABLE  11/01/2016 50.00 01.11.563.00

Total GALENA ROTARY CLUB (120318): 50.00

GALL'S, INC. (712)
006232941 1 Invoice BARRIER TAPE 11/12/2016 63.95 01.21.540.01
006343914 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM 11/01/2016 122.15 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 186.10

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
110116 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 12.21 01.13.511.08
110116 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 14.31 01.21.651.00
110116 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 65.55 01.41.514.06
110116 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 83.31 01.41.514.11
110116 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 274.12 01.41.652.00
110116 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 28.85 01.41.653.00
110116 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 51.38 17.52.514.00
110116 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 40.85 17.52.517.02
110116 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 53.95 17.52.652.00
110116 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 90.84 20.25.515.00
110116 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 52.30 22.22.611.00
110116 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 36.41 22.22.652.00
110116 13 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 148.50 22.22.655.00
110116 14 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 23.89 22.22.840.05
110116 15 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 13.74 58.54.654.01
110116 16 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2016 33.48 01.41.652.00

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 1,023.69

Page 64 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711)
103116 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARKING 10/31/2016 1,668.78 01.13.911.00

Total GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711): 1,668.78

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI007679 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/13/2016 4,078.44 01.41.613.11
GWI007681 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/13/2016 9,005.78 01.41.613.11

GWI1007748 1 Invoice ENGINE 113 REPAIR 10/27/2016 1,170.67 22.22.613.00

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 14,254.89

HAASCH, JULIANNE (120323)
102316 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/23/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total HAASCH, JULIANNE (120323): 200.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
111416 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 11/14/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
111416 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  11/14/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499)
13692 1 Invoice FIRE ALARM SERVICING 10/03/2016 263.40 58.54.532.00

Total HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499): 263.40

IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486)
2016-1790 1 Invoice DUES 11/03/2016 110.00 01.21.561.00

Total IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486): 110.00

ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL (118940)
110116 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/01/2016 30.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL (118940): 30.00

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1710748 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 10/17/2016 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152)
110116 1 Invoice BACKGROUND CHECK 11/01/2016 89.25 01.21.549.00
111016 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/10/2016 30.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152): 119.25

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
110116 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (STREET LIGH 11/01/2016 5,016.64 15.41.572.00
110116 2 Invoice FINANCE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 157.78 01.13.571.01
110116 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 11/01/2016 648.08 01.41.571.01
110116 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 127.30 12.10.571.01

Page 65 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

110116 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 46.69 17.52.571.01
110116 6 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 40.39 17.52.571.01
110116 7 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 281.43 20.25.576.01
110116 8 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 458.22 22.22.576.01
110116 9 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 1,272.13 58.54.571.01
110116 10 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 11/01/2016 33.62 01.41.571.01
110116 11 Invoice LIFT STATION 11/01/2016 110.84 52.43.850.09
110116 12 Invoice DEPOT/ELECTRIC 11/01/2016 116.97 01.13.511.03

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,310.09

JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREAS. (MFT) (119855)
2937 1 Invoice STREET STRIPING 11/02/2016 972.91 01.41.514.01

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREAS. (MFT) (119855): 972.91

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
110116 1 Invoice RECORDING FEES 11/01/2016 52.00 01.14.553.00
110116 2 Invoice LIEN RELEASE 11/01/2016 51.00 51.42.929.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 103.00

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
092316 2 Adjustmen GIS DATA 09/23/2016 538.67- 01.45.532.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 538.67-

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
110116 1 Invoice RECRUITMENT PROCES 11/01/2016 409.82 01.21.563.00
110116 2 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 11/01/2016 200.12 01.21.538.00
110116 3 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 11/01/2016 100.00 22.22.538.00

11012016 1 Invoice CIRT DUES FOR 2017 11/01/2016 500.00 01.21.563.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 1,209.94

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
101516 1 Invoice clothing 10/15/2016 134.99 01.41.471.09
101516 2 Invoice DOWNTOWN FLAGS 10/15/2016 124.95 01.41.652.00
101516 3 Invoice EQUIPMENT 10/15/2016 86.79 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 346.73

KEEFFER, JANELLE (120130)
100716 1 Invoice FRAM/MAT FOR TURNER  10/07/2016 36.37 58.54.553.00

Total KEEFFER, JANELLE (120130): 36.37

LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719)
090116 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 09/01/2016 720.00 15.41.614.00

Total LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719): 720.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9304464568 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 10/25/2016 256.18 01.41.652.00

Page 66 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

9304487615 1 Invoice TRASH BAGS 11/02/2016 238.75 17.52.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 494.93

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
25076 1 Invoice TIRES 10/13/2016 588.64 01.41.652.01
25234 1 Invoice NEW TIRES 10/31/2016 177.84 01.21.513.06

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 766.48

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 10/31/2016 34.50 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 34.50

LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218)
4291 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/21/2016 503.88 01.41.614.04

Total LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218): 503.88

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
3945 1 Invoice FRANKLIN/BENCH REPAI 10/21/2016 43,669.04 01.41.860.00

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 43,669.04

MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281)
233250 1 Invoice BACKHOE 10/17/2016 284.54 01.41.613.07

Total MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281): 284.54

MCCOY INSURANCE SERVICE (98)
16126 1 Invoice RURAL DIST. INSURANC 11/02/2016 3,773.00 22.22.591.00

Total MCCOY INSURANCE SERVICE (98): 3,773.00

MENARDS (280)
15233 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 09/30/2016 4.56 01.13.511.06
17693 1 Invoice PARKING SUPPLIES 10/30/2016 34.99 01.41.652.00

Total MENARDS (280): 39.55

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
101616 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE 10/16/2016 600.24 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 600.24

MOBOTREX (120256)
215649 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL 10/18/2016 336.00 15.41.514.06

Total MOBOTREX (120256): 336.00

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
149056 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 11/01/2016 13,636.60 13.44.540.04
149056 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 11/01/2016 4,716.90 13.44.540.00

Page 67 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

149056 3 Invoice DUMJPSTER RENTAL 11/01/2016 60.00 13.44.544.03
149056 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 11/01/2016 168.00 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,581.50

NICOR (151)
110116 1 Invoice GAS 11/01/2016 84.96 59.55.571.02
110116 2 Invoice TURNER HALL/GAS 11/01/2016 175.52 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (151): 260.48

O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158)
110116 1 Invoice ANNUAL AUDIT & COMP 11/01/2016 26,625.00 11.10.531.00

Total O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158): 26,625.00

OFFICE OF IL STATE TREASURER (119871)
110916 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/09/2016 5.00 01.21.549.00

Total OFFICE OF IL STATE TREASURER (119871): 5.00

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
110116 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 11/01/2016 88.21 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 88.21

PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208)
110116 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 11/01/2016 1,820.79 01.13.451.01

Total PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208): 1,820.79

PRAIRIE MOON NURSERY (120319)
1626309800 1 Invoice LANDSCAPING/JAIL STE 10/26/2016 458.00 01.11.929.02

Total PRAIRIE MOON NURSERY (120319): 458.00

PROJECT MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE (119506)
100716 1 Invoice PMI MEMBERSHIP 10/07/2016 179.00 01.45.561.00

Total PROJECT MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE (119506): 179.00

REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895)
5859 1 Invoice TREE DONATIONS 10/27/2016 606.00 17.52.820.06

Total REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895): 606.00

RURY, DAVE (609)
110416 1 Invoice CDL LICENSE 11/04/2016 65.00 01.41.563.00

Total RURY, DAVE (609): 65.00

SECRETARY OF STATE (515)
102816 1 Invoice TITLE/PLATES 10/28/2016 103.00 01.46.655.00

Page 68 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SECRETARY OF STATE (515): 103.00

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0450139 1 Invoice PHONE/ALARM MONITO 10/31/2016 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SELCO, INC. (119585)
68272 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE 11/01/2016 350.00 01.41.652.04

Total SELCO, INC. (119585): 350.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
233898M 1 Invoice REC PARK SCORE BOAR 06/28/2016 768.28 17.52.820.06

464338 1 Invoice FRANKLIN/BENCH SIGNS 10/18/2016 35.72 01.41.652.04
465187 1 Invoice SIGNS/BENCH/FRANKLIN  10/26/2016 414.51 01.41.652.04

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 1,218.51

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
103116 1 Invoice FUEL 10/31/2016 482.40 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 482.40

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
2075 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 11/01/2016 300.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 300.00

TEMPERLY, KAY (120325)
110716 1 Invoice CR BALANCE REFUND 11/07/2016 11.33 98.115.0

Total TEMPERLY, KAY (120325): 11.33

TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154)
116698 1 Invoice PRESERVATION AWARD 10/17/2016 8.00 01.46.563.01

Total TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154): 8.00

US CELLULAR (92)
110116 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 11/01/2016 50.40 01.41.552.00
110116 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 11/01/2016 48.22 01.11.552.00
110116 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 11/01/2016 39.23 01.21.552.01
110116 4 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 11/01/2016 20.00 01.216.0
110116 5 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 11/01/2016 44.82 01.21.552.01
110116 6 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 11/01/2016 37.19 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 239.86

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
7105 1 Invoice GET WELL FLOWERS 11/01/2016 49.00 01.21.549.00

Page 69 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 49.00

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
110116 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 11/01/2016 76.02 22.22.655.00
110116 2 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 11/01/2016 50.13 01.21.537.00
110116 3 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  11/01/2016 38.03 01.21.652.03

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 164.18

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D009409 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 07/06/2016 20.09 01.21.654.00
D009973 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 07/13/2016 84.76 01.13.511.06

D010922A 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 07/26/2016 18.30 58.54.654.01
D010922B 1 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 07/26/2016 72.11 58.54.654.01

D011985 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 08/10/2016 29.73 01.13.511.06
D011986 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 08/10/2016 147.57 01.13.511.08
D012714 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 08/22/2016 30.12 01.21.654.00
D012929 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 08/24/2016 495.92 01.13.511.06
D012931 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 08/24/2016 112.15 01.13.511.08
D012932 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 08/24/2016 151.42 01.13.511.08
D015319 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 09/28/2016 30.12 01.13.511.08

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 1,192.29

WELU PRINTING CO. (770)
0000159 1 Invoice PAINTING OF FRONT PO 10/31/2016 1,800.00 01.21.511.00

Total WELU PRINTING CO. (770): 1,800.00

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
110116 1 Invoice FRONT PORCH REPAIR 11/01/2016 3,300.00 01.21.511.00
110316 1 Invoice TURNER HALL BALCONY 11/03/2016 2,500.00 58.54.820.04
111416 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 11/14/2016 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 5,910.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
35576 1 Invoice GEAR ST. ENGINEERING 10/27/2016 1,056.50 41.61.860.05

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 1,056.50

WOHLERS, DALE (120028)
301027 1 Invoice DOWNTOWN FLAGS 11/02/2016 152.45 01.41.652.00

Total WOHLERS, DALE (120028): 152.45

Grand Totals: 230,911.77

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 5532659

Page 70 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     10
Input Dates: 10/25/2016 - 11/30/2016 Nov 10, 2016  11:13AM

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Vendor number hash - split: 6019968
Total number of invoices: 108
Total number of transactions: 156

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 230,911.77 230,911.77

Grand Totals: 230,911.77 230,911.77

Page 71 of 71


	00.00 Agenda 11.14.16xxx
	01.0454 Minutes cc102416
	02.0455 Stray Dog Contract
	stray dog 1
	DOC002

	03.0456 Budget Amendment BA17-05
	BA17-05
	FY17 Master List

	04.0416 Cullen Retaining Wall
	111416h
	Galena Cullen DNL

	05.0440 Vacation Rental Ordinance
	06.0457 American Water Report
	07.0458 Vacation Rental Licensing
	vaca 1
	vaca 2
	vaca 3

	08.0459 Horse Carriage
	09.0460 Liability Insurance
	10.0461 EPA Resolution
	111416c
	City Lot - Old Gas Plant GIS
	EPA Assistance Resolution

	11.0462 Tax Levy
	12.0463 Pay and Display
	13.0464 Leak Detection
	14.0465 Gas Storage Tanks
	15.0466 Warrants 11.14.16



